          1

          2  CITY COUNCIL

          3

             CITY OF NEW YORK

          4

             -------------------------------x

          5

             THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE MINUTES

          6

                       of the

          7

             COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          8  (Held Jointly With)

             COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          9  RE: NYC TAXI AND LIMOUSINE COMMISSION

         10  -------------------------------x

         11

                            March 11, 1999

         12                 Start:  4:05 p.m.

                            Recess: 4:20 p.m.

         13

                            City Hall

         14                 Council Chambers

                            New York, New York

         15

         16       B E F O R E:

         17              NOACH DEAR

                                           Chairperson,

         18

         19              COUNCIL MEMBERS:   June Eisland

                                            Kathryn Freed

         20                                 Lawrence Warden

                                            A. Gifford Miller

         21                                 Angel Rodriguez

                                            Alphonse Stabile

         22

         23

         24       LEGAL-EASE COURT REPORTING SERVICES, INC.

                         217 Broadway -  Suite 511

         25              New York, New York 10007

                              (800) 756-3410

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            2

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S

          3

             Diane McGrath-McKechnie

          4  Chairperson/Commissioner

             NYC Taxi and Limousine Commission

          5

             Joseph Giannetto

          6  First Deputy Commissioner

             NYC Taxi and Limousine Commission

          7

             Matthew Daus

          8  General Counsel

             NYC Taxi and Limousine Commission

          9

         10

         11

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            3

          1  TAXI AND LIMOUSINE COMMISSION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay, Commissioner,

          3  welcome. Do you have a prepared statement for us?

          4                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Very

          5  brief, sir, and then I figure you will ask whatever

          6  questions that you feel as you may.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay, thank you.

          8                 Identify yourself for the record, and

          9  the people that are with you.

         10                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: My

         11  name is Diane McGrath-McKechnie, and I am the

         12  Chairperson of the Taxi and Limousine Commission.

         13                 To my right is my General Counsel,

         14  Matthew Daus, to my left is my First Deputy

         15  Commissioner Joseph Giannetto, and my Deputy

         16  Commissioner for Finance Susan DelPercio.

         17                 So, I guess I will dispense with the

         18  good morning and we will go with good afternoon, and

         19  we are certainly very happy to be here and to be

         20  given the opportunity to testify, to give testimony

         21  specific to the Mayor's Preliminary Fiscal Year 2000

         22  financial plan.

         23                 I am pleased to report to you at the

         24  outset that the TLC is aggressively pursuing its

         25  mission as set forth in the City Charter of
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          2  protecting the riding public through the effective

          3  licensing and regulations of the taxicab, for-hire

          4  vehicle, paratransit and commuter van industry.

          5                 TLC rules and the enforcement in the

          6  adjudication of these rules are designed to maintain

          7  high standards for our licensees to ensure public

          8  safety, as well as to improve the overall quality of

          9  life for New York City.

         10                 As we have reported in previous

         11  fiscal years, the Taxi and Limousine Commission

         12  continues to perform quite well, and in fact in an

         13  enhanced fashion under Mayor Giuliani's mandate to

         14  accomplish more with less.

         15                 The Commission's activity during the

         16  current fiscal year, FY '99 is in line, with the

         17  projections in the annual financial plan.

         18                 The TLC's total preliminary budget

         19  for FY 2000 is approximately 19.7 million, 15.4

         20  million for PS and 4.3 million for OTPS, which

         21  represents a two percent increase as compared to FY

         22  '99. And I would be very happy to answer any

         23  questions you have as they pertain to the budget.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: No other questions?

         25                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Well,
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          2  I am here, sir, to answer budget questions.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Oh, okay.

          4                 I know that this is something we have

          5  asked questions to the other agencies on as well,

          6  with regard to the alternative fuel programs, what

          7  is your agency doing to implement these programs and

          8  the vehicles that you have and the new vehicles that

          9  you order. Are you dealing with -- are you

         10  implementing and are you bringing in CNG cars?

         11                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: We

         12  have electric vehicles, I will be happy to give you

         13  that report.

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GIANNETTO:

         15  (Not identified for the record.) We have a fleet of

         16  about 113 vehicles, several of which are fueled by

         17  alternative fuels. We have two electrically-powered

         18  vehicles and we have three vehicles operated on by

         19  compressed natural gas. Most of our vehicles are

         20  enforcement vehicles, and therefore exempt from the

         21  alternative fuel requirements.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Exempt meaning you

         23  don't have to? I mean, you don't have to really do

         24  the other -- I mean, are you not looking at them as

         25  well?

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            6

          1  TAXI AND LIMOUSINE COMMISSION

          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GIANNETTO:

          3  Well, to the enforcement vehicles, operationally

          4  speaking they are not conducive to enforcement.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Why?

          6                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: They

          7  don't have the same speed and pick-up that you need

          8  in an enforcement vehicle.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And also could you

         10  comment on your agency's progress in establishing

         11  fueling stations throughout the City?

         12                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Well,

         13  our agency does not establish fueling stations. As

         14  you know, that is the private sector. I believe we

         15  have the numbers for you. I believe it is 19, it is

         16  static. The industry, the taxicab industry, who as

         17  you know, in order to be a fleet you have to be

         18  24-hour operational, therefore you are entitled to

         19  standby vehicles.  The Taxi and Limousine Commission

         20  mandated that in order to get the standby vehicles

         21  they had to be CNG. As you know, the industry as a

         22  whole has been very upset over the CNG. They do not

         23  like it. They continually complain about the lack of

         24  refueling sites, but we will give you the number but

         25  regrettably it has not grown. It has not grown over
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          2  the last several years.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: For what reason?

          4                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Well,

          5  you would have to ask the private sector. I mean, as

          6  for the cart comes before the horse, one will say

          7  well there are not enough cars to refuel, and then

          8  the other says, well, we are not going to buy cars

          9  until there are more sites to refuel, and quite

         10  frankly, maybe there is less of a determination out

         11  there. And Con Ed closed down for a few days last

         12  week just without giving anyone notice, it seems to

         13  be something that is getting to be a little more

         14  problematic.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And with regard to

         16  your cars, obviously you have your stations that you

         17  refuel.

         18                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Yes,

         19  sir.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: You have your own,

         21  you use the City stations, obviously.

         22                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And you tell me

         24  that there are 19 City stations within --

         25                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Well,
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          2  they are not City. There is Con Ed -- go ahead, you

          3  can give him the list. There is Bug, there is Con

          4  Ed, there is a couple of others.

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GIANNETTO:

          6  I don't have the specific details. You are talking

          7  about the available CNG sites throughout the City?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Right.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GIANNETTO:

         10  Not just particularly for our vehicles, agency

         11  vehicles --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: The agency vehicles

         13  obviously -- does the City have its own CNG fueling

         14  sites?

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GIANNETTO:

         16  The City has its own fueling sites, but I am not

         17  prepared to comment on where they are.

         18                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: I

         19  know there is one at JFK. There is 19 total, we can

         20  get you the specific number. There has been a lot of

         21  hope that there would be a lot more than that by

         22  now.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Federal CMAC

         24  funding has been used to retrofit the vehicles to

         25  use CNG. Are CMAC funds available for increasing the
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          2  number of fueling stations as well?

          3                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: I

          4  really couldn't answer that, Councilman, I am not

          5  sure. But I will be happy to check into that and

          6  give you an answer. I know that they are heavily

          7  involved in it.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Because I think it

          9  could be very, very helpful. And if we could find a

         10  way after that to tie it into the private sector, I

         11  know if a fueling station belongs to the City, I

         12  mean obviously a private sector can't use it. But

         13  this is not just any fueling station, this is

         14  something that we all want to encourage to continue

         15  to use. It must be a system of how private sector

         16  could tap into the City fueling stations and of

         17  course pay for it.

         18                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Some

         19  of the larger fleets have in fact attempted to some

         20  degree to put refueling sites on their property and

         21  they have found it to be very, very problematic to

         22  get the permits from the various agencies, because,

         23  you know, in some degree I guess the refueling site

         24  is a hazard. So, it depends on where it is located

         25  and the usage, et cetera.
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          2                 But certainly the industry indicates

          3  that it is an overwhelming problem for them, and I

          4  am sure you have heard the same thing.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: But if the CMAC

          6  funds can be used for fueling stations, maybe a

          7  vehicle and a route where to go to see if we can

          8  establish them in the City, more of these stations.

          9                 Also, with regard to the disabled

         10  community, what progress has been made to provide --

         11  we have talked about this many times, about the

         12  taxicab service to the disabled community?

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GIANNETTO:

         14  Council Member, the Easter Seal Society of New York

         15  has partnered up with one of the largest for-hire

         16  vehicle companies in the City, under the umbrella

         17  name of executive charge company. They are in the

         18  process of purchasing accessible vans. They have

         19  already purchased one, we expect delivery in two

         20  weeks, we expect to announce the project at about

         21  that time in which accessible vans will be available

         22  to the public.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Meaning by phone?

         24                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: By

         25  telephone, yes. Because as you know, we have our own
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          2  disability advisory board and I think that is the

          3  one thing that we all agree on, is really that is

          4  the only way it is going to work. Because to sit on

          5  a street corner, quite frankly, and hope that

          6  someone is going -- you are going to catch their eye

          7  is really, you know, you can tell them you are doing

          8  something for them when in fact you are really not.

          9  So they need to be accessible by telephone. And

         10  there are what, 40 -- 60,000 for-hires out there and

         11  it is certainly doable, but it would be the for-hire

         12  industry.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Eventually how many

         14  are you going to have?

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GIANNETTO:

         16  Well, the program is going to start off with six

         17  vans that will be available Citywide, and depending

         18  upon the success of the program, Easter Seals

         19  (phonetic) as well as Executive Charge, and other

         20  for-hire vehicles under the umbrella of the Black

         21  Car Assistance Corporation, are ready to purchase

         22  more vehicles to meet the demand.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: So what is this

         24  "Seals" role in this program, purchasing the

         25  vehicles?
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GIANNETTO:

          3  That is part of the role, yes.

          4                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: It is

          5  purchasing, it is trying to package it, it is

          6  promoting it.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And the person

          8  calling Executive Charge will pay the normal rate?

          9                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Yes,

         10  that is correct. Same rate you and I would pay.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Right. Now,

         12  obviously if this is a program that ends up being

         13  successful, obviously there is a cost involved, and

         14  how are you going to try to offset a cost and make

         15  this, to expand this program? Because Easter Seals

         16  is probably doing six vehicles, I am sure tomorrow

         17  if there is a need for 100 vehicles they are not

         18  going to go out and --

         19                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: I

         20  don't think that is true. Based on if it is

         21  successful, they are prepared to go forward and to

         22  expand the program pretty rapidly.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Obviously Easter

         24  Seals has to come in to play a role here, they are

         25  offsetting some of the costs. Are they prepared to
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          2  expand it at any number and to help implement this

          3  program?

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GIANNETTO:

          5  They are prepared to expand it. At any number I

          6  don't know. But they are prepared to expand it. They

          7  made a commitment that even in the short term if the

          8  demand far exceeds the capacity, they are willing to

          9  transfer vehicles out of state operations into New

         10  York.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: They have done this

         12  obviously in other states?

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GIANNETTO:

         14  Yes, there is a very good transportation network in

         15  other states, specifically in New Hampshire, and

         16  they are pretty much experts at it as it pertains to

         17  the smaller City and they need the expertise of

         18  someone like Executive Charge to help them navigate

         19  New York City.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: There are other

         21  programs for yellow, for medallions, for yellow cabs

         22  using -- which is adaptable to the disabled,

         23  particularly in Boston, and they always raise the

         24  issue of Boston; is that a plan that we could model

         25  off over here so we could have the low regular hails
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          2  adapted to --

          3                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: They

          4  did not hail cabs in Boston, they are all by

          5  telephone. You can walk out of a hotel room where

          6  they are cued up, but if you are from your home or

          7  wherever, from your office, they are called. They

          8  only work from telephone. They are like our livery

          9  industry, they are not like our industry at all.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay.

         11                 Also, the TLC recently published a

         12  request for information concerning the redesigns of

         13  your taxicab partitions; do you want to update the

         14  Committee about it and what it is all about?

         15                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Yes.

         16                 MR. DAUS: Councilman, we did publish

         17  an RFI for partitions, we received minimal responses

         18  to the RFI and I believe we put together partition

         19  task forces, the First Deputy could tell you a

         20  little bit more about it.

         21                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:

         22  Basically what we had hoped for is we had hoped the

         23  industry would step up to the plate. I mean, I was

         24  in a cab last night where I literally could not see

         25  through the partition. Obviously I am a trained
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          2  observer and I know what to look for, so for your

          3  tourist it would be an absolutely impossible

          4  situation. But regrettably that did not happen, so

          5  the TLC has had to take the process over, and my

          6  First Dep can explain because he has been heading up

          7  that Committee.

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GIANNETTO:

          9  We put together a Committee made up of

         10  representatives from the people who manufacturer

         11  partitions. We actually went out to the law

         12  enforcement community because they use partitions in

         13  their vehicles. Local manufacturers and members of

         14  the Taxi and Limousine Commission, they have met

         15  several times, they have got some good ideas, how to

         16  make the partition smoother, without any kind of

         17  jagged edges, extra padding, specifications on

         18  installation that provide more room for the

         19  passengers. We expect a final report by April 1st.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: In light of the

         21  decrease in crime that is taking place in the City

         22  of New York, are we looking maybe that we can go

         23  back to the days where we don't need petitions?

         24                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: We

         25  are not. We feel that that is one of the major
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          2  deterrents to crime and I think most of the drivers

          3  feel the same way, is the fact that the crime

          4  against cab drivers dropped dramatically when the

          5  partitions went out, and, quite frankly, went in,

          6  and owner/operators can choose to do that now, as

          7  long as they are the only one who drives that cab,

          8  they can choose to put in a partition or not, and

          9  quite frankly a fair amount of them do choose to put

         10  in a partition. It is a safety barrier, it is a very

         11  different person that will shoot you in the back to

         12  try to through a change purse or through the seat,

         13  other than one step outside in an active City

         14  Street. So there is no doubt the partitions have

         15  worked. I think the vast majority of the industry is

         16  very happy with them, the goal is to try to get a

         17  bigger and better car so you have more leg room, and

         18  also obviously to get people to wear their

         19  seatbelts, so in the event of a short stop their

         20  face doesn't go into the partition. But that

         21  partition is a real safety factor. It is a safety

         22  factor for the driver.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I understand that.

         24  And obviously they had played the role, particularly

         25  when we had difficult times in this City. But,
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          2  again, because of the changes that are taking place,

          3  maybe we should look at it, you know, more maybe

          4  friendlier service where we don't have a partition.

          5  Because I think there are still cities who have

          6  higher crime rates that are not using petitions.

          7                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Well,

          8  then I would suggest to them that they should

          9  install partitions and their crime rate would go

         10  down, like it did in New York.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Well, there is a

         12  difference between the crime rate --

         13                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: It's

         14  very serious. We have drivers being shot in San

         15  Francisco, drivers being shot and killed in Chicago,

         16  thank

         17  God that is not happening in the City of New York,

         18  and I think that those bulletproof partitions are

         19  the reason why that is not happening. And I am not,

         20  as the Chair of the agency, prepared to make a

         21  recommendation, and we have discussed this with the

         22  Mayor's Office, to remove the partition. The

         23  partition is not the most beautiful thing in the

         24  world, but it is a real safety factor, and for all

         25  of the bad raps that we get sometimes, it is a
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          2  safety factor for the drivers, and I personally

          3  would not want that on my conscience. I am not

          4  prepared to do that at this time.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And liveries are

          6  not required, obviously, to put in petitions, are

          7  they?

          8                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:

          9  Liveries are required to have a partition -- the

         10  only operator rule applies across the Board for them

         11  also, another safety advice that is approved by the

         12  Commission, and that could be something like a

         13  global system or an emergency system.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: You mean instead of

         15  the partitions, they can put in another device or

         16  that is only for liveries?

         17                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: That

         18  is only for liveries. Liveries work off the phone,

         19  you know, they know where they are going, they know

         20  their community that they are serving and they know

         21  the persons hailing on the streets of the City of

         22  New York, where it is a very different set of

         23  circumstances, stranger to stranger at all times.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Except when you had

         25  the incident with the liveries, obviously they
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          2  didn't do a phone contact, they might have just

          3  picked them up off the street.

          4                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: When

          5  that happens, we know that happens.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I know that you are

          7  contemplating now additional reforms in the TLC,

          8  could you elaborate on them?

          9                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: No,

         10  Councilman. I am here today just to talk about

         11  budget issues, any additional reforms that the TLC

         12  is looking for I would be happy to discuss with you

         13  at a hearing specific to those things.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: If you want to be

         15  technical, it is budget-related, because everything

         16  you do is budget-related, everything costs money. I

         17  don't know why we have to have another hearing just

         18  to hear about that. I am not talking about

         19  elaborate, I just want to know if there is anything

         20  particular that is upcoming now that you talk about

         21  in reform of the industry?

         22                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: As I

         23  said, Councilman, I am here to testify on budget

         24  issues, and clearly not to see the TLC's future

         25  goals and reforms as a part of the budget agenda
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          2  specifically today. And so, as I said, I would be

          3  happy to discuss it at another time in an

          4  appropriate forum.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I just don't

          6  understand that answer because I think it is part of

          7  the budget process, and we have had this discussion

          8  with other agencies as well. So, if you don't want

          9  to answer it, we will discuss it another time.

         10                 Going back to the issue of the

         11  disabled, the cabs provided for the disabled

         12  community. You have talked about the disability of

         13  the advisory committee or the ones that had

         14  difficulty with the yellow tax -- you know,

         15  implementing a service via the hail system, rather

         16  than the pick-up system?

         17                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Well,

         18  only the telephone aspect of it. Just the telephone

         19  aspect.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Because I remember

         21  when they testified we had these hearings here, we

         22  had in fact proposed legislation and/or resolution,

         23  the people at least testified, talking about besides

         24  the arranged service, they would like to see a

         25  service where they can hail a cab walking out of a
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          2  meeting. You know, part of it is to be a part of our

          3  society. They shouldn't be different, and that is

          4  the whole idea. That is why public transportation is

          5  meant to be accessible, things like that, so they

          6  don't have to go and stand out and being a

          7  specialized group or have specialized needs.

          8                 So, is there ever a time that we

          9  think that we can move forward in a hail system

         10  being cabs to accommodate people with a disability,

         11  or are probably going to have to go the route of the

         12  arranged services?

         13                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: We

         14  think certainly that the arranged services is the

         15  most practical and the most effective, and certainly

         16  we heard the same testimony that you heard, that

         17  they would obviously like to hail a medallion cab,

         18  but then what they would really like, they expressed

         19  to us they would really like to be able to get

         20  service, and service is operating off the telephone.

         21                 There is some consideration, we are

         22  looking at what other cities do, to see if in fact,

         23  possibly you know, making them accessible, the

         24  number, the ratio we are not sure of, but quite

         25  frankly, Councilman, in all good consciousness, I
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          2  really don't know -- I mean, we can say that they

          3  are accessible, that they are out there, but in the

          4  streets of the City of New York where the cabs work,

          5  it is not practical. It is just not practical.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Council Member

          7  Stabile.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: The question

          9  about the partitions. I have to agree, I think we

         10  have cut down on serious crimes and murders through

         11  our City with the partitions. I would like the

         12  partitions even made more stronger, just more

         13  visible.

         14                 But I also think we are forgetting

         15  another part about the partitions, why the petitions

         16  do save lives. If a cab driver was shot while

         17  driving a cab, the cabbie becomes uncontrollable, or

         18  he gets injured, he can't move or run or whatever,

         19  he can then eventually run into a store or a

         20  pedestrian also, so I think the partition should

         21  stay forever.

         22                 On the calling service for disabled

         23  people, I cannot see a City like this working any

         24  other way besides servicing the disabled, and I

         25  applaud the Taxi and Limousine Commission, but I

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            23

          1  TAXI AND LIMOUSINE COMMISSION

          2  also applaud Easter Seals for being part of this

          3  pilot program. What I would like to see about this

          4  program is it to be broken down to see where we are

          5  getting most of the calls. Once we go aboard with

          6  this, I think the biggest plus would be where we are

          7  getting most of the calls. Are we getting them from

          8  Manhattan? Are we getting them from outerboroughs?

          9  Are we getting them from just elderly people, are we

         10  getting them from younger people to see, and to see

         11  if we are also servicing that area for public

         12  transportation, which would also be another thing.

         13  And I think also on this other note, which involves

         14  transportation, is to see if Access-A-Ride, which I

         15  have a problem with, is doing their job, and I

         16  believe that is one of the roots to the biggest

         17  problems, because the Access-A-Ride is supposed to

         18  be handicapped accessible and help people in and out

         19  of cars and take them to appointments for

         20  chemotherapy or dialysis or whatever, not just

         21  shopping or they got to buy a bag of crack -- vial

         22  of crack, excuse me.

         23                 The other question I want to ask you

         24  about is the meter tampering. By the end of March

         25  1999, TLC -- you like that question, okay, let me
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          2  give you an answer on that because my colleague is

          3  laughing.

          4                 I had an interesting thing happen

          5  that I think everyone should know now because they

          6  are laughing, where a person called and said they

          7  couldn't get Access-A-Ride, someone else, and I hope

          8  the camera picks this up, called and at that

          9  location there was a bus where Access-A-Ride was

         10  driving too young ladies to purchase crack in the

         11  East New York section of Brooklyn. So, I have a

         12  serious problem with Access-A-Ride. You can laugh

         13  but that is very serious, when a person is waiting

         14  for Access-A-Ride to go for chemo or dialysis, and

         15  this Access-A-Ride driver is riding around with two

         16  young ladies to go pick up crack on Pitkin Avenue, I

         17  believe, and Essex Street, to be exact.

         18                 The question with respect to meter

         19  tampering, you said there is something coming March

         20  to complete this final stage of meter tampering;

         21  what are we actually doing?

         22                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: If

         23  you talking about, we are testing 15 tamper-proof

         24  meters on the street right now. Actually, a few of

         25  them before that have been on the street for several
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          2  months now and they prevent, if there is any sort of

          3  surge on the meter, it would freeze. If the meter is

          4  $3 at that point, it will freeze at $3, and when

          5  that surge dissipates, then it will go to three $3

          6  and start to move again.

          7                 It does a lot of good things, I mean

          8  technology is just starting to move on this. It is

          9  set at a certain speed, so if you are speeding in

         10  excess of 50 miles an hour we will be able to pull

         11  that and download that on the computer tape. We have

         12  seen some very interesting results, people going 77

         13  miles an hour on Madison Avenue. It will be another

         14  piece of evidence as far as accidents. It will pick

         15  up fast surge, it will also pick up what anecdotally

         16  I believe is the most common, which is a slow,

         17  steady surge which may make a difference in say a $5

         18  ride, you know, fifty cents to a dollar. Well, a lot

         19  of people will not argue that because they are not

         20  paying that much attention or they are not sure.

         21  Obviously when they surge them up to $50, people

         22  will argue with that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Do we have

         24  any governing devices on our cabs?

         25                 Does any of the cab companies have
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          2  governing vehicles cannot go over $60 miles an hour.

          3                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: No.

          4  No. Actually we chose 65 miles an hour for the test

          5  pilot, because there is one strip that I believe you

          6  can go 65 miles an hour to the Newark Airport.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Okay.

          8                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: And

          9  they do drop off at Newark Airport.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Thank you

         11  very much.

         12                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Thank

         13  you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: No further

         15  questions.

         16                 Thank you very much for your

         17  testimony.

         18                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Thank

         19  you.

         20                 (Hearing concluded at 4:20 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 11th day of March 1999.
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